MAYWOOD PLANNING BOARD
MINUTES
April 3, 2025

A regular meeting of the Maywood Planning Board was held on Thursday, April 3, 2025 in the Council
Chambers of the Maywood Municipal Building, 15 Park Avenue, Maywood, New Jersey at 7pm. “This
Meeting was called pursuant to the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act. Notice of this meeting
was published in the Our Town and The Record newspapers on or about December 12, 2024. In
addition, copies of this notice were posted on the bulletin board in the Maywood Municipal Building at
15 Park Avenue, filed with the Borough Clerk and distributed to all persons, if any, requesting copies of
same pursuant to said act. This meeting is being recorded with both audio and video and may be
rebroadcast. This meeting is a judicial proceeding, any questions or comments must be limited to the
issues that are relevant to what the Board may legally consider in reaching a decision and decorum
appropriate to a judicial hearing must be maintained at all times.”

Flag Salute

Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 7:02pm with the following members present:
Councilperson Douglas Herrick

Chairperson Charlotte Panny

Vice Chairperson Anthony Klymenko

Secretary Gary Neumann

Cynthia Petersen

John Gargagliano

Harry Hillenius

Thomas Lindenau

Thomas Anzevino

Board Attorney John Ferraro

Board Engineer & Board Planner Gregory Polyniak

Approval of Minutes None

Bills
Cynthia Petersen made a motion to accept payment of the bills. John Gargagliano seconded the motion.
All eligible members present voted in favor of the motion.

Correspondence

1. 3/3/25 letter from Board Engineer Gregory Polyniak Re: Optum Medical Care of NJ 1 Maywood
Avenue Completeness, Planning & Engineering Review

2. 3/13/25 letter from Board Engineer Gregory Polyniak Re: Unity Road Cannabis Shop Maywood
105 Essex Street Completeness, Planning & Engineering Review

3. 3/24/25 letter from Board Recording Secretary Tara Grunstra Re: Acct #9818 Marcin Ferenc 19
West Central Avenue Escrow Shortage

4. 3/25/25 Borough of Maywood Resolution #111-25 Authorizing & Requesting a Preliminary
Investigation into Block 124, Lot 48 and 49 as an Area in Need of Redevelopment with
Condemnation

Page 1
4.3.25 PB Minutes.docx



5. 3/25/25 City of Hackensack Adopted Ordinance #12-2025 Adopting Former Sears Site
Redevelopment Plan

6. 3/25/25 City of Hackensack Adopted Ordinance #13-2025 Amending 132-148 Main Street
Redevelopment Plan

7. 3/27/25 letter from Applicant Marcin Ferenc Re: 19 West Central Avenue Withdrawal of
Variance Application

8. 3/31/25 letter from Joseph L. Basralian, Esg. Re: Unity Road Cannabis Shop Maywood 105
Essex Street Engineering Review Response and Waiver Request

9. 3/31/25 letter from Board Engineer Gregory Polyniak Re: The Grass Cab 949 Spring Valley
Road Completeness, Planning & Engineering Review

Resolution Filip Kristani
44 Parkway
Block 62, Lot 4
Calendar #2023-11
Variance Application
1-Minimum Front Yard Setback (25’ required vs. 19.5 proposed)
2-Maximum Lot Coverage (30% permitted vs. 30.80% proposed)

Councilperson Douglas Herrick made a motion to memorialize the resolution. Cynthia Petersen
seconded the motion. All eligible members voted in favor of the motion.

Completeness Hearing None

Application Hearing The Grass Cab

949 Spring Valley Road

Block 1, Lots 2 & 4

Calendar #2024-08

Variance & Site Plan Application

Variances

Lot 2

1-Minimum front yard setback (25’ required vs. 15.08’
existing/proposed)

2-Minimum number of parking spaces (118 required vs. 114
existing/proposed)

3-Minimum number of ADA parking spaces (5 required vs. 2
existing/proposed)

4-Parking space dimensions (9 x 18’ required vs. 7° x 18’
existing/proposed)

5-ADA parking space width (12’ required vs. less than 12’
existing/proposed)

Lot 4

1-Minimum front yard setback (25 required vs. 24.40’
existing/proposed)

2-Parking space dimensions (9’ x 18’ required vs. 8.85” x 18’ proposed)

3-ADA parking space width (12’ required vs. less than 8’ proposed)

Page 2
4.3.25 PB Minutes.docx



Thomas Garlick of Murphy, Schiller & Wilkes represented the Applicant, The Grass Cab. He reminded
the Board that this hearing was a continuation and that the Applicant was seeking site plan approval for
a Class 5 cannabis dispensary. He explained that at the previous hearing, the Board had requested a
traffic and parking study which was submitted. He said that the Applicant’s traffic engineer would
testify and answer any questions. He stated that his final witness would be the Applicant’s planner
which would provide variance relief testimony.

Mr. Garlick’s first witness was traffic engineer Bill Masol who was sworn in, qualified and accepted.
Mr. Masol prepared the traffic and parking report dated 3/14/25. He said that they took weekday and
Saturday traffic counts 7am-7pm at the Spring Valley Avenue and Spring Valley Road intersection. He
stated that the information is entered into traffic analysis software which grades the levels of service to
create a baseline of existing conditions. Using NJDOT resources, he said that he projected future traffic
counts if the proposed use was not built. He explained that those numbers were compared to the
projected traffic counts for the proposed use and how the proposed use would affect the levels of
service. He summarized that there was minimal impact on traffic levels of service with the proposed
use. Regarding parking, Mr. Masol reminded the Board that parking on Lot 4 satisfied the Borough
code and Lot 2 would be used for overflow parking. He explained that Lot 2 parking counts were taken
on two weekday afternoons and two Saturday afternoons which were anticipated to be the peak times.
He said that the parking count was highest on weekday afternoons but the parking lot was only 43%
occupied. He added that the highest occupancy on the Saturday afternoon represented only 10%
occupancy. Based on that information, he said that Lot 2 could accommodate the overflow parking from
Lot 4.

Cynthia Petersen confirmed the location of the overflow parking on Lot 2. Chairperson Panny inquired
about the difference in levels of service for the no-build vs. build option. Mr. Mayol answered that the
projected counts include optimized traffic signal timing because the actual signal timing data was not
available. Chairperson Panny said that she experienced the difficulty in making a left turn at that
intersection. Councilperson Douglas Herrick expressed concern regarding the sample size and noted
that counts in February and March may not accurately reflect the activity that occurs throughout the
year. He cited the number of increased trips for the proposed use that were provided in Mr. Masol’s
report. Mr. Masol explained that the trips would be stretched out across an entire day which was why
they concentrated on peak times. Councilperson Herrick said that the traffic in November and
December would greatly increase because of the proximity to Bergen Town Center. Mr. Masol
acknowledged the increase in holiday traffic as a special event which may require a police officer for
traffic control. He added that the number of trips include both arrivals and departures. Chairperson
Panny confirmed that accident statistics were not included in Mr. Masol’s report. John Gargagliano
requested a review of the traffic pattern entering and exiting both lots. Mr. Masol replied that Lot 4 has
an entry and exit while traffic would be one way from Lot 4 to Lot 2. Mr. Garlick noted that Board
Engineer/Planner Polyniak had requested one way signage in addition to the painted roadway arrows.
Councilperson Herrick cited prior testimony that the Applicant anticipated 6-8 employees. Mr. Garlick
conferred with the Applicant and answered that the Applicant would expect 4-5 employees on-site at
one time. Councilperson Douglas Herrick confirmed that the Applicant is seeking a parking variance for
Lot 2 as the 30 leased parking spaces would exacerbate an existing parking non-conformity. Mr.
Garlick noted that the building on Lot 2 was at tenant capacity so the parking counts reflect the full use
of the building. Board Engineer/Planner confirmed that the Lot 2 property owners authorized the
Planning Board application. Chairperson Panny confirmed that the lease would still be in effect should
Lot 2 change ownership. Cynthia Petersen confirmed that the leased spots would be unmarked to allow
use by either business. Ms. Petersen said that she had observed the Lot 2 parking lot being full and had

Page 3
4.3.25 PB Minutes.docx



found it difficult making a left turn at the Spring Valley Road and Spring Valley Avenue intersection.
She asked if the Applicant would consider limiting the vehicles exiting Lot 4 to right turns only as she
noted the problem with making a left turn there. Mr. Garlick conferred with the Applicant and agreed to
install a right turn only sign at the Lot 4 exit as a condition of approval. Councilperson Herrick inquired
if Lot 4 should only be an entrance and all traffic should exit through Lot 2. Mr. Garlick said that
offering the right turn only signage at the Lot 4 exit would be the better solution. Thomas Lindenau
confirmed that there would be sufficient space for vehicles to enter and exit Lot 4 at the same time.

Chairperson Panny invited Board Engineer/Planner Polyniak to ask questions of Mr. Masol. Board
Engineer/Planner Polyniak clarified that the parking lease with Lot 2 was for 5-years with 3 renewals of
5 years each. He made a left turn into Lot 4 earlier that night and confirmed that Mr. Masol did not
witness queuing issues that might impact the traffic signal when the traffic counts were conducted.
Board Engineer/Planner Polyniak asked what the Applicant was seeking for the Lot 2 parking variance.
After some discussion, Board Engineer/Planner Polyniak clarified that the Applicant was seeking relief
of 84 parking spaces provided vs. 118 parking spaces required. Thomas Anzevino asked if Mr. Masol
anticipated traffic backing up onto Route 4 due to business demand. Mr. Masol said that traffic backing
up on Route 4 would be shocking and he did not anticipate that situation. Councilperson Herrick noted
that Spring Valley Road had a double yellow line and he then confirmed that vehicles may cross a
double yellow line to access a driveway. Board Engineer/Planner Polyniak suggested having employees
park in the Lot 2 overflow parking lot to allow patrons all 10 parking spaces on Lot 4. Mr. Garlick
replied that the Applicant would be agreeable to that suggestion.

Chairperson Panny invited the public to ask questions of Mr. Masol but no one came forward.

Mr. Garlick introduced planner Christopher Nusser who also acted as the Applicant’s civil engineer and
testified at the previous hearing. Mr. Nusser was reminded that he was still under oath. He was then
qualified and accepted. Mr. Nusser summarized the reliefs that were being sought for each lot. He
explained that the relief for the setback variances should be considered a hardship as the buildings were
existing. Regarding the Lot 2 parking variance, he stated that the relief should be both a hardship and
that the benefits of granting the variance would substantially outweigh the detriments. He said that
granting the parking variance would advance several purposes of zoning per the MLUL such as:

e Purpose A: promoting the general welfare

e Purpose I: promoting a desirable visual environment
He noted that the peak times for both uses don’t overlap so this would avoid a parking demand issue.
He summarized the various benefits of the shared parking agreement and stated that the traffic and
parking report support these benefits. Regarding the variance for the parking space sizes, Mr. Nusser
said that the relief promotes the same purposes of zoning and the reliefs that were being sought were de
minimis. He stated that to bring the parking space size into compliance, the Applicant would need to
remove landscaping buffer which he considered a detriment. He noted the 8 striped area adjacent to the
ADA parking space brings the total width to 16°. He added that it would meet the accessibility standard
in the Building subcode. Regarding the negative criteria, he explained that the project would not create
a substantial detriment to the public good nor create a substantial detriment to the zoning plan or zoning
ordinance. He summarized that the uses were permitted under the zoning ordinance. He cited the traffic
and parking analysis and said that there would be sufficient parking for all the uses. He said that the
parking spaces were appropriately sized. He added that the buildings have existed in the current
location for many years without issue.

Page 4
4.3.25 PB Minutes.docx



Chairperson Panny invited Board Engineer/Planner Polyniak to ask questions of Mr. Nusser. Board
Engineer/Planner Polyniak said that citing hardship seemed appropriate for the existing non-
conformities. Regarding if the benefits outweigh the detriments, he agreed that the increased trips
would be a detriment but considered the use of the property a greater benefit. He added that he did not
see a negative impact to the zoning ordinance nor master plan. He summarized that the Applicant’s
planner provided the necessary testimony.

Chairperson Panny invited the public to ask questions of Mr. Nusser. Fire Official Thomas Tuttle
confirmed that there were currently 114 parking spaces on Lot 4 where 118 parking spaces were
required. Board Engineer/Planner Polyniak confirmed that should the Police Department deem it
necessary, the Applicant would agree to pay for a police officer to direct traffic. Board Attorney John
Ferraro clarified that the Applicant was no longer seeking a variance for the depth of the newly
constructed curb. Cynthia Petersen questioned if the Board had any recourse should there be a large
increase in traffic or traffic accidents in the area after the business opened. Board Engineer/Planner
Polyniak advised that the Applicant would not return to the Board but he said that the police officer on-
site would ensure that there were safe movements around the business. Councilperson Herrick
confirmed that this parking variance for Lot 4 would overwrite the previous resolution when the medical
office building was built. Chairperson Panny asked if a traffic signal would be installed if there were a
significant increase in traffic accidents. Board Engineer/Planner Polyniak said that Lot 4 was too close
to the traffic signal at the Spring Valley Road and Spring Valley Avenue intersection to warrant a
second traffic signal.

Board Attorney Ferraro listed the conditions agreed to by the Applicant:

1. No left turn/right turn only signage installed at the Lot 4 exit

2. Should the parking lease not be renewed, the Applicant agreed to return to the Board

3. Employees will park in the Lot 2 overflow parking lot

4. Should the Police Department recommend traffic control, the Applicant would provide and pay
for a police officer

5. All the open comments from Board Engineer/Planner Polyniak’s 3/31/25 review would be
addressed

Councilperson Douglas Herrick made a motion to approve the application with the conditions listed by
Board Attorney Ferraro. Vice Chairperson Anthony Klymenko seconded the motion. All eligible
members present voted in favor of the motion.

Informal Hearing None
Closed Session None
Old Business None

New Business
e Distribution of Calendar #2024-08 The Grass Cab 949 Spring Valley Road Additional
Application Materials
e Cancellation of 4/24/25 Planning Board Meeting
o Harry Hillenius made a motion to cancel the 4/24/25 meeting and Cynthia Petersen seconded
the motion
= All eligible members present voted in favor of the motion

Page 5
4.3.25 PB Minutes.docx



Open Meeting to the Public

Adjournment

A motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Harry Hillenius. Councilperson Douglas Herrick
seconded the motion. All eligible members present voted in favor of the motion. The meeting was
adjourned at 8:08pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Tara Grunstra
Planning Board Recording Secretary

Page 6
4.3.25 PB Minutes.docx



